EAST NORRITON TOWNSHIP
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2020

A meeting of the East Norriton T ownship Planning Commission was held via ZOOM on Wednesday,
November 18, 2020. Attending were Planning Commission members John Kolb (Chairman), Jeff Moller
(Vice Chairman), Ken Grimes (Secretary), Keith Tornetta, Ed Cavanagh John Barrett and Kandy
Heckman were present. Jim Sullivan (township engineer) was also present.

1. Call Regular Meeting to Order
® Meeting called to order at 7:00PM.

2. Pledge of Allegiance was not done.

3. Approve Planning Commission Meeting Minutes for October 21, 2020:
® Chairman Kolb called for a motion to approve the meeting minutes of the Planning
Commission’s October 21, 2020 meeting.

* A motion was made by Mr. Tornetta, seconded by Mr. Cavanaugh, and the motion passed 7-
0 in favor.

4. Review ZHB Application #2020-14 located at 53-55 Germantown Pike located in the SC

Shopping Center Zoning District.
Potential Actions: Recommendation to the Zoning Hearing Board

The applicant is proposing to redevelop the property as an e-commerce distribution
facility with associated retail storefront.
Speaking on behalf of the owner of the property is Rob Lewis of Kaplan Stewart,
attorney that represents the applicant and the developer
Mr. Lewis shared his screen to show an overview of the project being proposed.
Applicant is owner of the property
Former site of Walmart and Pep Boys
Building is currently 132,000 square feet on approximately 15 acres
Began talking about access points of Hilltop, Mill Road and Germantown Pike
Loading for Walmart originally on side along Hilltop and close to residential
community.
Proposing to repurpose facility as majority “last mile e-commerce fulfilment center”
with small retail store.
Some modifications:
o Pep Boys section would be eliminated (30,000 square feet)
o Arrange parking stalls from north/south to east/west
o Access from Germantown pike would also be changed to a right in and right
out, from the current right out only.
o Building will be reskinned and aesthetic improvements
© Move the delivery and loading facility from Hilltop to Germantown Pike side
of building
o Adding a canopy
o Retail store component will be on Hilltop side with most aesthetic
improvements
o No changes to access points other than Germantown access



o Addition of greenspace and islands with storm water management in mind

o All parking spaces will have an electric charging station
Fulfillment Center where customers have placed an order and the orders are staged
for delivery.
Trucks arrive into delivery and unloaded by staff during overnight times (12-18 trucks
per day.) There is no intention to have large trucks during peak periods of traffic.
No racking or warehousing
Products are staged and readied for pickup by step or sprinter vans for delivery in
waves and shifts throughout the day

¢ Retail facility is available for customer pick up of items purchased and return of items

e Locker will also be a part of the retail facility
Preliminary traffic assessments have been done which show an afternoon peak
decrease in traffic of 5,000 vehicle trips with new facility as compared to traffic when
Walmart and Pep Boys were fully operational

* Slight traffic increase in the morning as the sprinter vans are heading out for delivery
as compared to Pep Boys and Walmart traffic

* Preliminary meetings over summer with Zoning Office that the proposed use was
permitted with special exception under 205-68A.

e Impacts to the residential neighborhood is minimal

ENPC Questions:

® Mr. Kolb, asked who owns the Mill Road driveway

® Mr. Lewis said 90% is physically on this property

* Mr. Moller asked how adding miniscule retail component makes this proposal really
makes this of a general character for retail use. How is this not a warehouse but a
retail use?

e Matt Adams responded by differentiating a warehouse that stores inventory vs.
fulfillment is the preparation and delivery of customer orders. All merchandise in the
facility has been paid for and is ready for pick-up or delivery from the fulfillment
center.

* Mr. Moller’s motivation is to make EN more of a community rather than a retail hub
or warehouse center. Under our zoning, this is a shopping center area and not a
warchouse area. |

* Mr. Adams stated that the 500 square feet is not just put there to make the project
retail, but is an essential part of the business.

» Eli Kahn, owner of E. Kahn development explained how retail is changing and citied
that larger numbers of vacant stores will continue to occur and how online shopping
particularly post-COVID is here to stay.

* Mr. Grimes asked about the origin of the product coming to the facility.

® Mr. Adams stated that he could not state the origin as the developers are under and
NDA with the supplier.

* Mr. Grimes asked will sprinter vans be parked overnight — 277 vans parking overnight
with 158 stalls for employees

e Mr. Grimes asked how many employees?

* Mr. Adams 150-155 employees

* Vans are loaded and leave throughout the day10:30am-12:00pm loaded and leave

e Mr. Cavanaugh asked if the vans would be electric.



The company is planning for it, but spots would be electric ready even if the vans are
not at this point

Mr. Kolb asked about Solar

Mr. Adams said they haven’t seen that yet but will ask

Mr. Grimes asked about hiring employees or relocating from other places

Mr. Adams said it would probably be new hires with flexible 3™ party drivers

Mrs. Heckman asked if trucks will go near Stuarts Keep.

Mr. Kahn said vehicles will use Mill Road and Germantown, but not Hilltop.

Mr. Barrett asked about the loading of vans

Mr. Adams described the staging of vans which would be like a golf outing with carts
stacked up and proceed out in a progression between the hours of 10:30-12:00.

Mr. Barrett asked about vans returning product.

Mr. Adams said the drivers will not be involved in returning product, but he would
check to make sure.

Mr. Moller asked who the intended tenant is. Discussion ensued and the name begins
with A,

Mr. Tornetta is concerned that this is the wrong spot for this kind of facility in that it
will be located in the middle of the township.

Mr. Tometta asked about returns by the drivers as it seems like drivers are being freed
up from returns in favor of deliveries.

Mr. Adams stated 30% returns is industry average but he would look into it.

Mr. Moller asked about 40-60 step vans in staging area.

Mr. Lewis stated that it is more akin to sprinter vans or personal vehicles rather than
box trucks.

Mr. Adams stated that the preliminary study stated 128 vans would leave between
10:30 and 12:00.

Mr. Kahn stated that there is considerably less traffic with this proposal than Walmart.
Mr. Kolb asked what this building will look like when finished.

Mr. Kahn stated that with Pep Boys building gone, the new facility will have the
loading area recessed and the retail area will look retail to the residents, and the front
facing Weis will have a decorative look.

Mr. Tometta asked where other facilities like this are located.

Mr. Kahn stated that easier access to locations like this is the goal, not industrial
complexes. The vacant big box stores is where these facilities should go.

Mr. Heckman asked if there was another facility like this nearby.

Mr. Adams said KOP and one going in on Ridge Pike.

Mr. Kolb stated it is a concern that this area was identified as our Town Center in our
comprehensive plan.

Mr. Kolb asked Mr. Sullivan if the special exception were granted, what guaranty do
we have that improvements are made.

Mr. Sullivan said they would have to make improvements before they could move in.

Resident Comments;

¢ Scott Detrick stated that he liked the proposal. That this will protect the township
going into the future. Good opportunity

* Gordon McGowan stated that he is all for this. A parcel this size is not going to
attract a retailer. If we can get tax revenue, this is a great idea.



¢ Mr. Kahn stated value of the property would go up. However, creating an
apartment complex is often very difficult to complete and a very long process to
go through. Tenant will invest millions of dollars into space.

e Mr. Sullivan stated was another e-commerce center, a retail first floor with 3
floors above and a PECO laydown yard.

e Another resident questioned about taxes that would be income to the township.
Mir. Kahn stated mercantile tax as well as real estate tax.

RECOMMENDATION: Mr. Grimes made a recommendation of approval to the Zoning
Hearing Board.

Mr. Cavanaugh seconded the motion.

o Mr. Moller requested discussion in which he stated he does not feel that this is in the best
interest of the township to put a warehouse in the middle of our business district.

e Mr. Cavanaugh stated we are looking at the future of retail and as planning commission
we should be doing everything we can to find the best way of integrating the future of
retail into our community.

e Mr. Grimes, Mr. Moller and Mr. Tornetta agreed that this is not the ideal location for this
facility.

The motion carried in favor 5-2. Mr, Moller and Mr. Tornetta opposed.

. New Business:

o Apartment Complex on DeKalb Pike. Mr. Kolb asked that this come to ENPC sooner than
later as there are issues with the site design.

e Old Vallecy Forge Rehab Center. Mr. Sullivan stated there is interest in the facility.

o Hertz Rental Car has filed for bankruptcy so they are not coming to the location near
PepBoys.

. Next Planning Commission Meetings Scheduled for Wednesday, December 16, 2020 at
7:00pm.

. Adiournment:

d seconded by Mr. Moller. Meptixymi'ou :33PM

i
Mr. Ken Grimes:

tary



